1. In the previously posted Questions and Answers, the government responded

to a question regarding the "Escrow of Source Code" in which it stated that

the government would be entitled to unlimited rights even if the supplier

developed the source code and owns the rights to software.  See question

below:

QUESTION:  On page 4 under the paragraph entitled "Escrow of Source Code" if

the supplier has developed the source code and owns the rights to the

software will the government be entitled to unlimited rights?

ANSWER:  Yes.

The government's response seems inconsistent with FAR Part 12 which requires

that the government take no more rights in commercial item software than

those rights of commercial customers.  Please clarify this inconsistency

with FAR Part 12.

Answer:  FAR Part 12 takes precedence.

2. In order to meet the March 31 start date for the concurrent system

operation, potential bidders would certainly have to begin building the

concurrent system prior to the award date.  Is this the expectation of the

government?  Or is the government expecting the winning awardee of the

contract to build the concurrent system and have it running the day after

the award?

Answer: March 1 through March 31 will be the transition period which will 

give time for reindexing. Concurrent operations includes testing and 

implementation.
3.  With regard to the question and answer below about providing hardware

free for 30 day concurrent testing, is the government planning to reimburse

all losing bidders for their costs incurred to set up a concurrent system

prior to the award so that they can be ready by the March 31 deadline?  If

so, why would the incumbent not be reimbursed for this line item cost as

well?

QUESTION: Am I correct in my understanding that the vendor would be required

to provide the hardware for the 30-day test free of charge to the govt?

ANSWER: No, the Government does not expect a vendor to propose the first

30-day transition period for free.  Each vendor, except the incumbent, is

expected to propose this transition cost in a separate line item.

Answer:  Only the winning vendor will be testing the search functionality concurrently 

with the existing service.  The Government will NOT reimburse unsuccessful offerors 

for any expenses.  The winning offeror shall only begin work after a contract is awarded.
4.  In the RFP the government states:

"The final award will be based on the best value to the Government.  Best

value is defined as the offer that results in the most advantageous

acquisition decision for the Government.  This analysis will be performed

through an integrated assessment and trade-off analysis between technical

(e.g., technical and management approach and past performance) and

price/cost factors."

Please DEFINE "most advantageous acquisition" and CLARIFY/DEFINE "management

approach and past performance."

Answer:  Most advantageous acquisition decision means just what it sounds like.  The acquisition decision that provides the Government with the most advantages, 

i.e., the best value.  Management approach is just your technical approach 

as laid out in your technical proposal.  Past performance is when we look 

at your past works to get an indication of how you might perform for us.

5.  Technical clarification requested below based on the following previous

question & answer:

QUESTION:  Data size assumptions.  In 2002 the number of bytes is estimated

at 736G for 50 million documents.  This works out to approximately 14k per

document, which is a normal estimate for web pages.  However, in 2005 the

number of documents has grown to 200 million but data size is only 820G.  Is

this correct?  That would work out to approximately 3K per document.

ANSWER: Those assumptions are for page views and not for indexing."

Since the assumptions in the RFP are for page views, please provide a

scope of the current and/or projected size of documents as

well as the file types. (i.e. 92% of documents in FY 2002 are HTML pages

with an

average size of 15 KB., etc.)

This information is not available.
6.  After reviewing FAR 52.211-11 concerning "Liquidated Damages" there is

still clarity lacking as to the amounts/rates of the Liquidated Damages and

under what circumstances these "Liquidated Damages" would be levied.  FAR

52.211-11 below states:

52.211-11 Liquidated Damages-Supplies, Services, or Research and

Development.

As prescribed in 11.503(a), insert the following clause in solicitations and

contracts:

Liquidated Damages-Supplies, Services, or Research and Development (Sept

2000)

(a) If the Contractor fails to deliver the supplies or perform the services

within the time specified in this contract, the Contractor shall, in place

of actual damages, pay to the Government liquidated damages of $__________

per calendar day of delay [Contracting Officer insert amount].

(b) If the Government terminates this contract in whole or in part under the

Default-Fixed-Price Supply and Service clause, the Contractor is liable for

liquidated damages accruing until the Government reasonably obtains delivery

or performance of similar supplies or services. These liquidated damages are

in addition to excess costs of repurchase under the Termination clause.

(c) The Contractor will not be charged with liquidated damages when the

delay in delivery or performance is beyond the control and without the fault

or negligence of the Contractor as defined in the Default-Fixed-Price Supply

and Service clause in this contract.

Please provide the anticipated rates and structures for the "liquidated

damages" and/or "incentives" proposed by the government in section 2.1.6

(Pricing Section).  In order to properly price the proposed solution we

would need to know how much the "liquidated damages" and/or "incentives"

might be.  This is a risk factor that could easily affect the profitability

of any bidding teams response to this RFP.  At the moment there is no

clarification as to what the nature, extent, amounts or prescribed

conditions these "liquidated damages" and/or "incentives" would be levied by

the government.  Can you please clarify this issue in detail and provide a

rate chart with dollar amounts that correlates with the issues that would

create a "liquidated damage" charge and the issues that would create an

"incentive" reward?

Answer:  $500.00/day rate for liquidated damages.

7.  In the "Additional Clarifications" posted on 1/15/01 the government

states the following:

"4. Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Plan.  In

accordance with FAR 19.704(d), large businesses shall submit a commercial

plan for their small business subcontracting plan."

If the "Prime" bidding vendor does not qualify as a "small business" and

does not anticipate any "Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Businesses"

to be a part of their team on the RFP response is there a need to submit a

"Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Plan.  In

accordance with FAR 19.704(d)?

Answer: Yes.  FAR 19.704(d) requires a commercial plan.  

8.  Question:  What is the NAICS code and size standard for this procurement?

Answer:  The NAICS code is 421430 and the size standard is 500 employees.

9.  Section 4.1.1.1—What are the percentages of the different formats (HTML, PDF, Microsoft Word, 
Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Powerpoint, ASCII (.txt) and XML) expected in the Total Pages row

 in Table in Section 2.1.5.  What is the average size of each expected format?
This information is not available at this time since these file formats have not been indexed.

10.  Ref:  "4.1.1.6  The system must provide the capability to index databases across the web via ODBC."  

Please clarify whether the databases will be accessed over a public TCP/IP network or over a

 private (internal) TCP/IP network or through some other method.

This will be dependant on individual needs the solutions provided in this proposal will be evaluated on their merit.

11. Further question on answer number 1 provided 1/15/02.  This timeline does not make sense.  

Here is what we understand:

a. Award 2/28/02

b. Start concurrent operation 3/1/02

This means that  PRIOR to 3/1/02 all hardware and software needed to run the

concurrent application must be installed and ready.  We estimate that it will take 

approximately 2 weeks to bring up all the hardware and another 2+ weeks to load 

search application and customize.

This means that all vendors must procure hardware and software and install starting 

2/1/02 which is prior to award.

We feel that this raises issues of fairness and compels all vendors to incur 

significant expense prior to award with no compensation for that expense.

c. Run concurrent operation for 30 day acceptance period

d.  Acceptance period ends, no earlier than 4/1/02

e. Receive shipment of GFE for installation, starting 4/8/02 (assumes one week to 

deinstall hardware and ship to new location)

f. Install GFE hardware plus software loads 2 weeks

g. Begin 15 day acceptance on GFE—4/22/02

h. Pass acceptance on GFE, begin full operational status—5/6/02

i. Start deinstall of concurrent operation hardware

We ask that 3/1/02 be the start date for installation of hardware/software for concurrent operation.

March 1 through March 31 will be the transition period which will give time for reindexing. Concurrent operations includes testing and implementation.  The vendor shall perform 

NO work before award.
12.  Does the Q&A from 1/15/02 that reads “Question: Am I correct in my understanding that the 

vendor would be required to provide the hardware for the 30-day test free of charge to the govt? 

Answer: No, the Government does not expect a vendor to propose the first 30-day transition 

period for free.  Each vendor, except the incumbent, is expected to propose this transition 

cost in a separate line item.” mean that the incumbent vendor is not required to go through a 

transition period to prove performance of the total solution?  Does this also mean that the 

incumbent vendor is not required to provide additional hardware for concurrent operation? 

 If so, how will this obvious impact on all other vendors’ pricing be evaluated?
  Answer:  The incumbent will not have to go through transition as he is the 

incumbent and already in place and will transition the new awardee.  As stated, 

the incumbent is already in place and therefore charging the Government for 

their hardware, as well as the other search services.  The Government does 

not intend to be billed for the incumbent contract remaining in place 

until March 31, 2002 and paying again for the month of transition during March.
13. Is the current architecture of the government furnished equipment available?

Current configuration information is not available to prospective vendors.
14. What is the purpose or role of the SUN A1000 equipment?  This is storage 

system with over 2.2 Terabytes of potential storage.

This equipment will be available for use by the selected vendor.
15. What is the current version of the operating system on the SUN equipment 

(would be helpful to know now, even though it will be wiped clean when available).

Solaris 8
16. How can the March 1 date for concurrent operation start one day after the 

projected award.  A new search engine would at least require reindexing the 

50M documents.  Is there a requirement to recrawl and collect the 50M documents 

or are they going to be made available somehow?

March 1 through March 31 will be the transition period which will give time for reindexing. Concurrent operations includes testing and implementation.


17. Is there an architectural diagram(s) available for the current configuration?

NO
18. Is there any load balancing currently being used? If so, what vendor's appliance?

Current configuration information is not available to prospective vendors.
19. What Java server is currently being used: Weblogic, Websphere, Jrun, other...?

Current configuration information is not available to prospective vendors.
20. Is there currently a firewall in place? If so, whose?

Current configuration information is not available to prospective vendors.
21. Are there any numbers regarding actual data transfer in GB or Mb/sec available?

There are no additional statistics available at this time.
22. Are there any statistics that describe peak usage?

There are no additional statistics available at this time.
23. There is a discrepancy in the numbers provided for the query rate. The

Questions and Answers document from 01/14/2002 states that the initial

system architecture should be able to handle up to 2 million queries per day

(an average of 23 per second). However, section 2.1.5 in the Statement of

Work lists 58,448,000 page views per year in the Usage and Demand

Assumptions table. This works out to an average query rate of approximately

3 per second. Which numbers are correct?

The initial system architecture should be able to handle up to 2 million queries per day.

24. Can we assume that supporting documentation, brochures, etc. can be considered 

appendices and therefore, outside of the 25 page limit?

Answer: Additional brochures, supporting documentation, appendices are not needed.

25.  Section 3.1.8 Installation - This section specifies the need to build a

parallel pilot/test system that can be stress tested for performance

measurements regarding query response times.  Is this parallel pilot/test

system required to be built and tested prior to being awarded the contract

by the Government?  Or, will this pilot/test system be built and tested

after the award of the contract by the government?  In other words, is

building the pilot/test system for query response time testing part of the

requirement to receive an award of this contract?

Building the pilot/test system for query response time testing will start after 

the contract has been awarded.
26.  Is the government completely opposed to the having the new system run on

brand new hardware as opposed to using the suggested GFE hardware

recommended in Section 2.1.7 of the RFP/Synopsis?  Would a proposal offering

new hardware instead of the GFE hardware be evaluated equally?

FirstGov has a number of Sun E250, E220, and A1000 computers and other equipment that 

they desire to continue using.  See Schedule of Equipment in Appendix A.  This equipment will be 

available for the vendor to use in providing the required solution.  The vendor is not required to use 

this equipment, however, the vendor must specify any equipment necessary to meet the performance 

and functionality specifications provided herein.  The vendor must provide separate line item pricing 

for this additional equipment.  Note: The Government may choose to procure the equipment directly.

Due to the fact that service to the existing FirstGov site can not be interrupted, the vendor will be 

required to provide equipment for a short time to run the new search software in parallel with the 

existing software, in order to demonstrate that the service availability levels and performance levels 

can be met. 
27.  The RFP/Synopsis posted on 1/11/02 made changes to the Section numbering

schema of the entire document.  Because of the effort put into our original

responses based upon earlier versions and numbering schemas of the

RFP/Synopsis we would like to confirm two things A. & B. below:

 

 A.  Is the "Updated Synopsis" posted on 1/11/02 the final version of the

RFP/SOW?



 B. Should we be basing the format of our final RFP response/proposal on the

1/11/02 "Updated Synopsis" OR on the 

    "Statement of Work for Search

Engine RFP" posted on 1/7/02?  Please clarify as there does not appear to be

any 

    significant changes between the two versions.

Answer:  Use the most current version.

28.  Is the Technical Proposal Evaluation Matrix for clarification &

Government evaluation purposes only?  Or should it be incorporated into the

response/proposal somehow?  Please clarify the intent of this document.

It is for clarification only.
29.  What are the anticipated rates and structures for the "liquidated

damages" and/or "incentives" proposed by the government in section 2.1.6

(Pricing Section).  In order to properly price the proposed solution we

would need to know how much the "liquidated damages" and/or "incentives"

might be.  This is a risk factor that could easily effect the profitability

of any response to this RFP.  At the moment there is no clarification as to

what the nature, extent, amounts or prescribed conditions these "liquidated

damages" and/or "incentives" would be enforced by the government.  Can you

please clarify this issue in detail and provide a rate chart with dollar

amounts that correlates what issues would create a "liquidated damage"

charge and what issues would create an "incentive" reward?

Answer:  See answer above.

30.  Does the government have any preference for a "perpetual" software

license or a "term" software license for the Search Engine Software?  Would

both types of licenses be evaluated equally for award?

Both licensing methods will be evaluated equally
31.  Can the government please specify the duties of the 5 GSA administrators

that will help administer the system?  Do they need to be allowed physical

access to the hosting facility where the servers are located OR are they

expecting to do all administrative functions remotely?  Where will the 5 GSA

administrators work and be located?

The 5 persons designated by the Government should be trained on all aspects of 

the systems. Access to the hosting facility must be made available for security 

and other system administration functions, but can be in an escorted capacity.

32.  Is there any geographic preference for the location of the hosting

facility?

There is no geographic preference.
33.  Does the support listed in 3.1.7 Support imply a tier 1-3 help desk?

The support plan should assure a guaranteed uptime of 99.5% based on a 24/7/365 

schedule.  The vendor must propose a turn-key solution that includes hosting of 

the hardware, and installation and maintenance, and operation of software (See 3.1.2).
34.  Question:  How has GSA quantified the liquidated damages that may be

imposed on the contractor for failure to meet the required guaranteed uptime

of 99.5% on a 24/7/365  schedule?

Answer:  See answer above.

35.  Appendix A of the solicitation lists the sun models, Sun E250 and Sun

220R, as the Government Furnished Equipment.  However the descriptions for

both models are identical in all respects.  

Question: please clarify the detailed descriptions for each of these model

Sun servers.

The descriptions of the equipment are correct.
36. Thirty-day concurrent period.  When is this projected to begin, i.e., is this prior to or after the 

production installation date (March 31)?  I.e., must concurrent operation begin March 1 or April 1?
Concurrent Operations begin March 1.

37. Data size assumptions.  In 2002 the number of bytes is estimated at 736G for 50 million 
documents.  This works out to approximately 14k per document, which is a normal estimate for 

web pages.  However, in 2005 the number of documents has grown to 200 million but data size is 

only 820G.  Is this correct?  That would work out to approximately 3K per document.
Those assumptions are for page views and not for indexing.

38.Section 5.1.1.4. It is desirable that the system be able to organize content by a variety of 

taxonomies,such that there could be one taxonomy for the entirety of the FirstGov content, 

but separate taxonomies per agency or interest area. Question:  Should this be interpreted to 

mean that if a user begins a search on the main FirstGov site, one taxonomy should be used to 

represent results, versus if a user begins a search on an agency site, in which case an 

agency-specific taxonomy should be the default for presenting results?  Or should this be 

interpreted to mean that you would like the ability to toggle between taxonomies on a single site?

If a user begins a search on the main FirstGov site, one taxonomy should be 

used to represent the results. If a user begins a search on an agency site, 

an agency-specific taxonomy should be the default for presenting results.

39. 5.1.1.17.
Result Categorization – The search processor determines categories from the search 

results and presents them under the category heading according to a predefined or  dynamically 

generated taxonomy;  and  4.1.1.11. The search engine must be able to categorize the search results 

according to a taxonomy of words and phrases. The vendor should specify whether their system 

requires a pre-defined taxonomy, can automatically generate a taxonomy, or both. 

Question: How is the first service (a  Desired" Service) different from the second (a "Required" Service)? 

It is required that the words of the documents be indexed. It is desirable that 

the documents be categorized by some taxonomy and displayed by that taxonomy.

40.To what extent have each of the search collections been identified - different collections,

start pages for each collection, depth levels, click depths.   What role will the new technology 

play in identifying existing and new data?

The search collection has been identified. It is the entire government webspace that is 

publicly accessible and not protected by passwords or specifically disallowed through the 

robots.txt files. All this information must be spidered and indexed.

41.Will the desired collections contain duplicate content - meaning, will collections 

X and Y include the same pages from sites R and S, as well as their own unique set of data?

The collection is all government information and may contain duplicates.

42.  Is any personalization required?    
Personalization is not required but please review the Desirable Services and Capabilities section.

43.Number of daily, weekly, monthly searches - not page views.   What are the average and 

max # of concurrent searches. 
The initial system architecture should be able to handle up to 2 million queries per day.

44.  Percentage of people using search vs taxonomies and site maps.
This information is not available. Please research general internet usage studies.

45.Is the government looking to bring in all content from all sources as of March 31?  

 Is any of the content going through redesign phases, such that APIs written now will need to be 

rewritten within several months.

All content must be spidered and ready for implementation by March 31.  Since content is from all 

over government the second part of this question cannot be answered.

46.What are the current content mgmt tools and guidelines used.   Is content indexed from

Content Mgmt systems, as well as from sites?  
Answer:  The Offeror with the different configurations used throughout government. 

The Federal Search Foundation will provide information and lessons learned related 

to the operation of the engine during the concurrent period.
47.SOW states indexing of content in DBs and Lotus Notes is required.   Is content in DBs and 

Lotus Notes currently indexed for existing implementation?   Is this required by March 31? 

Currently Databases and Lotus Notes are not indexed. They will not be required by March 31. 

But a timeline of implementation should be provided.

48.  Are there documents that are bulk loaded?  How often?  What type?

This information is not available.

49.  Is there any current downtime for indexing, backups?

There should be NO downtime for indexing or backups.

50.Does the GFE Sun hardware have current maintenance agreements, if so when do they expire? 

Can we assume that hardware maintenance costs do not have to be included by the winning 

vendor as normally the vendor who holds title is the only vendor accepted by Sun for hardware 

maintenance contracts.  
They have one and a half years remaining on their maintenance agreement.

51.We assume that the government will be disassembling the existing hardware from the 

current installation and shipping the hardware to the new hosting location.  Is this correct?
This is correct.

52.Will all vendors, including the current service provider, be required to put up and test 

the new search function concurrently with the existing service?
Only the winning vendor will be testing the search functionality concurrently with the existing service.

53.  Section 3.1.7, “Available on-site within 2 hours…”  Does on-site mean on-site at the hosting center?
The support plan should assure a guaranteed uptime of 99.5% based on a 24/7/365 

schedule.  The vendor must propose a turn-key solution that includes hosting 

of the hardware, and installation and maintenance, and operation of software 

(See 3.1.2).

54.Section 4.4.1 Training.  When will training occur?  If training occurs during the 30 day 

window of concurrent operation, how will allowing each of 5 trainee’s shutdown of the servers 

impact system acceptance?  If this occurs after final GFE turnup, does the Government want to 

allow server shutdown during live operation for this training purpose?  Since this is an outsourced 

solution and all those functions will be provided by the vendor, why does the government need 

hands-on training on these items that can seriously affect live system operation?
Since the government will be managing the project, training is required on all phases for 

accountability and emergency purposes.

55.  Does the escrow of source code requirement also apply to Sun operating systems?
The vendor must supply a plan for uninterrupted service delivery in the event that the vendor 

exits the search business.  The vendor and all his subcontractors must enter into an agreement 

to escrow the source code of all software provided in response to this document.

56.What operating system and version is being run on the GFE hardware?  

We assume that the government is supplying all necessary Sun software licenses, is this correct?    
Answer:  The government is not supplying licenses.

57.In view of the complexity of this procurement as evidenced by the many questions received 

from prospective bidders, would the Government consider extending the due date of proposals 

from 4:00 pm EST, January 17, 2002 to 4:00 pm EST, February 18, 2002?
Answer:  It would be an almost impossible task for the Government to 

make the closing date for proposals Feb. 18 and make an award by Feb. 28.  

The Government did make an extension from Jan. 17 to Jan. 23, 2002.

